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TITLE: 
A Local Law to amend the administrative code of the city of New York, in relation to rates for the towing of motor vehicles.

I.
INTRODUCTION

On Tuesday, June 28, 2011, the Committee on Consumer Affairs, chaired by Council Member Daniel R. Garodnick, will vote on Proposed Introductory Bill Number 201-A (“Proposed Intro. 201-A”), a Local Law to amend the administrative code of the city of New York, in relation to rates for the towing of motor vehicles. The Committee first heard Proposed Intro 201-A on May 11, 2010.

II.
BACKGROUND


Pursuant to subchapter 31 of chapter 2 of Title 20 of the Administrative Code, the Department of Consumer Affairs (“DCA”) is responsible for licensing and regulating the tow truck industry.
 The Federal Aviation Administration Authorization Act of 1994, however, precludes the city from regulating the towing rates of any tower that performs its service with the express consent of a vehicle’s owner.
 Despite these restrictions, DCA does retain regulatory power over towing rates for vehicles where the owner has neither requested nor authorized the tow, also known as non-consensual towing.

There are four different types of non-consensual towing regulated by the City, specifically: (i) tows from private property;
 (ii) arterial towing;
 (iii) towing under the Directed Accident Response Program (“DARP”)
; and (iv) towing under the Rotation Tow Program (“ROTOW”).
   Private property towing refers to towing that takes place at the request of a property owner pursuant to a private contract between the property owner and a tow operator when a vehicle is on or obstructing his or her property.
 Arterial towing removes a disabled vehicle from arterial roadways such as highways.
  Vehicles that are involved in accidents and cannot be safely driven under their own power are towed by operators who choose to participate in DARP.  Under this program, created in 1987 as a response to complaints about “accident chasing” by tow truck drivers, an operator pays a small fee to be included on a list of DCA-approved tow companies.  After an accident is reported, police dispatch a DARP truck to the accident scene.  DARP trucks are dispatched on a rotating basis.
 Vehicles suspected of have being stolen or abandoned, those with certain alarm devices, or evidence vehicles, are towed by operators who participate in ROTOW, which operates in a similar manner to DARP, although it is a separate list.


The Council most recently passed legislation increasing rates on certain types of towing in 2001 and 2004. In 2001, the Council passed Local Law 72, which increased the maximum rates tow trucks could charge under the DARP and ROTOW programs and set higher rates for vehicles weighing over ten thousand pounds.   DARP tow operators were permitted to increase the amount charged for vehicles under ten thousand pounds from $65 to the current rate of $80, and could charge up to $125 for vehicles weighing more than ten thousand pounds.
  Local Law 72 of 2001 also authorized ROTOW operators to increase their rates from $50 to $70 for vehicles weighing less than ten thousand pounds and to $125 for vehicles above ten thousand pounds.  ROTOW storage rates were also increased from $10 to $15 per day for the first three days of storage and from $15 to $17 for each additional day. 

 Three years later, the Council passed Local Law 14 of 2004, which authorized a rate increase from $50 for the first mile and $4 dollars for every mile thereafter to $70 for the first mile and $4 for every mile thereafter for arterial tow operators, a group that was excluded from the rate increase in 2001.


Current charges for non-consensual towing vary from situation to situation. For towing from a private property, towing costs $100 and includes three days storage, plus ten dollars for each additional day of storage.
 Arterial towing costs $70 for the first mile and four dollars for each additional mile.
 Rates for the towing of vehicles under DARP depend on the weight of the automobile; vehicles weighing less than 10,000 pounds will cost $80 to tow, which  includes one day of storage, whereas vehicles weighing more than 10,000 pounds will cost $125 to tow, which also includes one day of storage.
 Under the ROTOW program, vehicles weighing less than 10,000 pounds cost $70 to tow and those weighing more than 10,000 pounds cost $125 to tow.
 The ROTOW program also permits a towing company to charge vehicle owners three days of storage for fifteen dollars a day, and seventeen dollars a day for every day thereafter.

III. 
Proposed Intro. 201-A

Proposed Intro. 201-A would raise towing rates for all types of non-consensual towing throughout New York City. Specifically, it would permit tow operators to charge $125 for vehicles removed from private property and private driveways, and for tows pursuant to DARP and ROTOW.  Tows pursuant to DARP and ROTOW would increase to $140 if the vehicle being towed weighs more than 10,000 pounds. The new rates for tows from private property and private driveways include three days of storage, and storage rates would increase to $15 per day for every day thereafter. Charges for storage related to tows pursuant to DARP and ROTOW would increase to $25 for the first three days of storage and $27 for each day thereafter. Arterial tow operators could charge $125, which would include the first ten miles, and charge four dollars for each additional mile thereafter.  Charges for all other types of non-consensual towing would increase to $100 from $50
 and the charge for storage of these vehicles would increase to $25 for the first three days of storage from $15 and to $27 for each day thereafter from $17.  

Proposed Intro. 201-A also increases the penalties for various towing violations.  The list of violations and their respective penalties is summarized in the chart below.  Additionally, Proposed Intro. 201-A lists several sections of the administrative code, which if violated three or more times in a two-year period would automatically result in a mandatory tow business license suspension or revocation.  These sections include, (i) §19-169 and §19-169.1, relating to improper towing of vehicles from private property; (ii) §20-507, required signage; (iii) §20-509 and §20-509.1, overcharging; (iv) §20-510, towing a vehicle involved in an accident without proper authorization; (v) §20-512, refusal to render tow services; (vi) §20-514, making or offering to make repairs to vehicles involved in accidents; (vii) §20-527, failure to accept a credit card by non-DARP towers; (viii) §20-520.1, DARP participant failure to accept a credit card; (ix) §20-518, DARP requirements; (x) §20-519, ROTOW requirements; (xi) §20-520, removal of disabled vehicles from highways without authorization; (xii) §20-516, required records; and (xiii) §20-515, other prohibited acts
.    

Proposed Intro. 201-A also lists certain sections of the administrative code, which if violated three or more times in a two-year period would automatically result in a mandatory tow operator license suspension or revocation.  These sections include, (i) §19-169 and §19-169.1, relating to improper towing of vehicles from private property; §20-510, towing a vehicle involved in an accident without proper authorization; (ii) §20-512, refusal to render tow services; (iii) §20-514, making or offering to make repairs to vehicles involved in accidents; (iv) §20-527, failure to accept a credit card by non-DARP towers; (v) 20-520.1, DARP participant failure to accept a credit card;  (vi) §20-519, ROTOW requirements; (vii) §20-520, removal of a disabled vehicles from a highway without authorization; (viii) §20-518, DARP requirements; and (ix) §20-515, other prohibited acts.
  
Further, Proposed Intro. 201-A would require licensed towing companies to maintain electronic copies of all their written records for a period of five years, to be made available for inspection upon request to the Commissioner of DCA.

Finally, Proposed Intro. 201-A would require DCA to submit a report to the City Council on an annual basis detailing: (i) the total number of violations issued, broken down by type; (ii) the total number of violations issued to each licensee; (iii) the total number of license suspensions, broken down by licensee; (iv) the total number of license revocations, broken down by licensee; and (v) the total number of meetings of the tow advisory board.

Intro 201-A: Proposed Rate Changes 

	Ad. Code Section
	Tow Type
	Current Charge
	Intro 201-A 

	§19-169
	Private driveway 
	$100/tow & 3 days storage 

$10/day additional storage
	$125/tow & 3 days storage

$15/day additional storage

	§19-169.1
	Private property
	$100/tow & 3 days storage 

$10/day additional storage
	$125/tow & 3 days storage

$15/day additional storage

	§20-519 9(c)(1)


	ROTOW 

(Stolen/Abandoned Vehicle)
	· Vehicle weighs <10,000 lbs. = $70/tow

· Vehicle weighs >10,000 lbs. = $125/tow

$15/day 3 days storage 

$17/day additional storage 
	· Vehicle weighs <10,000 lbs. = $125/tow 

· Vehicle weighs >10,000 lbs. = $140/tow 

$25/day 3 days storage

$27/day additional storage

	§20-509.1
	Arterial tow

(Highway Breakdowns)
	$70/ 1st mile

$4/mile thereafter
	$125/1st 10 miles
$4/mile thereafter



	§20-518 (b)(4)
	DARP 

(Accidents)
	· Vehicle weighs <10,000 lbs. = $80/tow & 1 day storage

· Vehicle weighs >10,000 lbs. = $125/tow & 1 day storage


	· Vehicle weighs <10,000 lbs. = $125/ tow 

· Vehicle weighs >10,000 lbs. = $140/tow 

$25/day 3 days storage

$27/day additional storage

	§20-509 (a), (b)
	Other non-specified 


	$50/1st mile 

$4/mile thereafter 

$15/day 3 days storage 

$17/day additional storage


	$100/tow

$25/day 3 days storage

$27/day additional storage


Proposed Penalty Enhancements

	Ad. Code Section
	Violation 
	Current Penalty
	Intro 201-A Penalty 

	§19-169/

19.169.1


	Improper Tow on Private Driveway/Private Property 


	· 1st violation = $250
· 2nd violation w/in 1 year = $500
· Additional violations w/in 2 years of 1st violation = $1,000

	· 1st violation = $500
· 2nd violation w/in 1 year = $1,000
· Additional violations w/in 2 years of 1st violation = $1,000
· 3 or more violations w/in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow operator and tow business license

	§20-509/

20-509.1
	Overcharging
	· 1st violation = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $250 and no more than $2,000
· 2nd violation in 2 years = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $500 and no more than $5,000

	· 1st violation = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $500 and no more than $3,000
· 2nd violation in 2 years = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $1,000 and no more than $10,000
· 3 or more violations w/in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow business license

	§20-515
	Other Prohibited Acts

	· 1st violation = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $250 and no more than $2,000
· 2nd violation in 2 years = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $500 and no more than $5,000
	· 1st violation = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $500 and no more than $3,000
· 2nd violation in 2 years = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $1,000 and no more than $10,000
· 3 or more violations w/in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow operator and tow business license

	§20-507
	Failure to Post Required Signage
	Each violation = Fine of no less than $100 and no more than $1,000
	· 1st violation = Fine of no less than $250 and no more than $2,500

· Subsequent violations w/in 2 years = original fine + additional fine of no less than $100 and no more than $500

· 3 violations in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow business license  



	§20-510
	Towing Vehicle Involved in Accident w/o Proper Authorization
	Each violation = Fine of no less than $100 and no more than $1,000 
	·  1st violation = No less than $250, No More than $2,500

· Subsequent violations w/in 2 years = original fine + additional fine of no less than $100 and no more than $500

· 3 violations in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow operator and tow business license  

	§20-512


	Refusal to Render Tow Services
	Each violation = Fine of no less than $100 and no more than $1,000 
	· 1st violation = No less than $250, No More than $2,500

· Subsequent violations w/in 2 years = original fine + additional fine of no less than $100 and no more than $500

· 3 violations in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow operator and tow business license  

	§20-514  
	Making Repairs to Vehicles involved in Accidents
	Each violation = Fine of no less than $100 and no more than $1,000
	· 1st violation = No less than $250, No More than $2,500

· Subsequent violations w/in 2 years = original fine + additional fine of no less than $100 and no more than $500

· 3 violations in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow operator and tow business license  

	§20-516
	Failure to Maintain Required Records
	Each violation = Fine of no less than $100 and no more than $1,000
	· 1st violation = No less than $250, No More than $2,500

· Subsequent violations w/in 2 years = original fine + additional fine of no less than $100 and no more than $500

· 3 violations in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow business license  

	§20-518


	Failure to Follow DARP Program Requirements
	1 violation = discretionary suspension/revocation
	· 1 violation = discretionary suspension/revocation

· 3 violations in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow operator and tow business license  

	§20-518(b)(2)


	Respond/Travel to Accident w/o Authorization 
	· 1st violation = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $250 and no more than $2,000; discretionary suspension/revocation

· 2nd violation in 2 years = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $500 and no more than $5,000


	· 1 violation = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $500 and no more than $3,000; discretionary suspension/revocation
· 2nd violation in 2 years = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $1,000 and no more than $10,000
· 3 or more violations w/in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow operator and tow business license 

	§20-519
	Failure to Follow ROTOW Program Requirements
	1 violation = discretionary suspension/revocation
	· 1 violation = discretionary suspension/revocation

· 3 violations in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow operator and tow business license  

	§20-520
	Removal of Disabled Vehicles from Highway w/o Authorization 
	Each violation = Fine of no less than $100 and no more than $1,000
	· 1st violation = No less than $250, No More than $2,500

· Subsequent violations w/in 2 years = original fine + between $100 and $500

· 3 violations in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow operator and tow business license  

	§20-520.1
	Failure to Accept Credit Cards (DARP Program)
	· 1st violation = $1,000

· 3rd violation in 2 years = Removal from DARP program for 1 year
	· 1st violation = 2,500

· 3rd violation in 2 years = Removal from DARP program for 1 year

· 3 violations in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow operator and tow business license  

	§20-527
	Failure to Accept Credit Cards (Non-DARP Tows)
	Each violation = Fine of no less than $100 and no more than $1,000
	· 1st violation = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $500 and no more than $3,000
· 2nd violation in 2 years = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $1,000 and no more than $10,000
· 3 or more violations w/in 2 years = mandatory suspension/revocation of tow operator and tow business license

	§20-496
	Failure to Meet License Requirements/Towing w/o a License
	· 1st violation = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $250 and no more than $2,000
· 2nd violation in 2 years = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $500 and no more than $5,000

	· 1st violation = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $500 and no more than $3,000
· 2nd violation in 2 years = misdemeanor, Fine of no less than $1,000 and no more than $10,000


Proposed Int. No. 201-A

By Council Members Reyna, Comrie, Dromm, Koslowitz, Rose, Vann and Williams

A Local Law to amend the administrative code of the city of New York, in relation to rates for the towing of motor vehicles.



Be it enacted by the Council as follows:

Section 1.  Paragraph 8 of subdivision c of section 19-169 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as amended by local law number 104 for the year 1993, is amended to read as follows:

8. Notwithstanding the charges permitted to be collected under subdivision c of section 20-519 of this code, a person who removes a vehicle pursuant to section 19-169 of this code may collect the following charges from the owner or other person in control of such vehicle, payable before the vehicle is released: [one hundred] one hundred twenty-five dollars for removal and the first three days of storage; [ten] up to fifteen dollars per day for storage thereafter, except that no charge may be collected for removal or storage of a vehicle pursuant to this section by a person who is not licensed to engage in towing pursuant to subchapter thirty-one of chapter two of title twenty of the code.

§2.
Subdivision c of section 19-169 of the administrative code of the city of New York is amended by adding a new paragraph 11 to read as follows: 

11.  Any person licensed pursuant to subchapter thirty-one of chapter two of title twenty of the code who removes a vehicle in violation of paragraphs one through seven of this subdivision shall be punished as follows: for the first violation, a fine of five hundred dollars; for the second violation within a period of twelve months of the date of a first violation, a fine of one thousand dollars; and for any additional violations within a  period of twenty-four months of the date of a first violation, a fine of one thousand dollars. 
§3.
Subdivisions a and j of section 19-169.1 of title 19 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as amended by local law number 104 for the year 1993, are amended to read as follows:  

a. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, where a licensed tow operator removes a vehicle because it is parked on private property in a manner inconsistent with posted instructions, and such removal is pursuant to a contract between the owner of the private property and the licensed tow operator for the removal of any such improperly parked vehicles, such tow operator may collect the following charges from the vehicle owner or other person in control of such vehicle, payable before the vehicle is released: up to but not more than [one hundred] one hundred twenty-five dollars for removal and the first three days of storage; [ten] up to but not more than fifteen dollars per day for storage thereafter; except that no charge may be collected for removal or storage of a vehicle pursuant to this section by a person who is not licensed to engage in towing pursuant to subchapter thirty-one of chapter two of title twenty of this code.

j. Any person who violates this section shall be punished as follows: for the first violation, a fine of [two hundred and fifty] five hundred dollars; for the second violation within a period of twelve months of the date of the first violation, a fine of [five hundred] one thousand dollars; and for any additional violations within a period of twenty-four months of the date of a first violation, a fine of one thousand dollars.

§4.
 Section 20-504.1 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as amended by local law number 112 of 1993, is amended to read as follows:

§20-504.1. Mandatory suspension or revocation of license. After due notice and opportunity to be heard, the commissioner shall refuse to renew, or shall suspend or revoke a license required under this subchapter, upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following conditions:

a. the person holding a license to engage in towing or where applicable, any of such licensee's officers, principals, directors, employees, or stockholders owning more than ten percent of the outstanding stock of the corporation, has been found by the commissioner to have [willfully and] unjustifiably refused to release a vehicle towed pursuant to section 20-518 or section 20-519 of this subchapter, to the vehicle's owner or the owner's agent. The commissioner shall establish standards concerning the sufficiency of proof of ownership of the vehicle and the legality of any charges demanded by the licensee for release of the vehicle. In determining whether such refusal is unjustifiable, the commissioner in addition to any other relevant fact shall consider such standards; 

b.  in a two year period, the person holding a license to engage in towing or where applicable, any of such licensee's officers, principals, directors, employees, or stockholders owning more than ten percent of the outstanding stock of the corporation,  has been [convicted of a misdemeanor of a felony relating to auto stripping in violation of article 165 of the penal law] found by the commissioner to have committed in any combination three or more violations of sections 19-169, 19-169.1 of this code or any rules promulgated thereunder, or sections 20-507,  20-509, 20-509.1, 20-510, 20-512 , 20-514, 20-515,  20-516, 20-518, 20-519,  20-520, 20-520.1 or 20-527 of this subchapter or any rules promulgated thereunder;
c. the person holding a license to engage in towing or where applicable, any of such licensee's officers, principals, directors, employees, or stockholders owning more than ten percent of the outstanding stock of the corporation, has been [found by the commissioner to have committed in any combination three or more violations of the provisions of section 20-515 or paragraph two of subdivision b of section 20-518 of this subchapter or any rules promulgated thereunder within a two year period] convicted of a misdemeanor or a felony relating to auto stripping in violation of article 165 of the penal law;

d. in a two year period, the person holding a tow truck operator's license has been found by the commissioner to have committed in any combination three or more violations of the provisions of [section 20-515 or paragraph two of subdivision b of section 20-518] sections 19-169 and 19.169.1 of this code and any rules promulgated thereunder, or sections 20-510, 20-512,  20-514, 20-515, 20-518, 20-519, 20-520, 20-520.1 or 20-527 of this subchapter or any rules promulgated thereunder [within a two year period];

e. the person holding a tow truck operator's license has been found to have operated any motor vehicle in violation of section eleven hundred ninety-two of the vehicle and traffic law during the license term, or has been found to have operated a tow truck in violation of section eleven hundred eighty-two of the vehicle and traffic law. 

§5.
Subdivisions a and b of section 20-509 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as amended by local law number 72 for the year 2001, are amended to read as follows:

a. Except as otherwise provided, charges for the towing of vehicles shall not exceed [fifty] one hundred dollars [for the first mile or fraction thereof and four dollars for each additional mile or fraction thereof]; provided, however, that where a motor vehicle has been booted by a person licensed pursuant to subchapter 32 of this chapter in a private lot as defined in paragraph 3 of subdivision b of section 20-531 of such subchapter and such vehicle is subsequently towed, no additional charge may be imposed for the towing of such vehicle. 

b. Except as otherwise provided, charges for storage of vehicles shall not exceed [fifteen] twenty-five dollars for each twenty-four hours or fraction thereof for the first three days of storage and [seventeen] twenty-seven dollars for the fourth day of storage and each day thereafter. 

§6.
Section 20-509.1 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as added by local law number 15 for the year 2004, is amended to read as follows:

§20-509.1. Rates for arterial tow permittees. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this subchapter, charges for the towing of disabled passenger vehicles from an arterial roadway by an arterial tow permittee authorized by the commissioner of transportation or the police commissioner shall be [seventy] one hundred twenty-five dollars for the first ten miles or fraction thereof and four dollars for each additional mile or fraction thereof.

§7. 
 Section 20-516 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as added by local law number 28 for the year 1987, is amended to read as follows:

§20-516. Records.  Every  person  licensed to engage in towing shall   maintain records,  ledgers,  receipts,  bills  and  such  other  written   records  as  the  commissioner may prescribe by regulation in electronic format. Such records  shall be made available for inspection by the commissioner at his or her   request at either the licensee's place of business or at the offices of the department for a period of five years.
§8.
Paragraph 4 of subdivision b of section 20-518 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as amended by local law number 72 for the year 2001, is amended to read as follows:

4. Notwithstanding any other provision of this subchapter, a towing company that removes an accident vehicle to its storage facility at the place of business which qualifies such company for participation in the directed accident response program or to its auxiliary storage facilities approved by the commissioner, shall not charge for the towing of a vehicle registered at a weight of ten thousand pounds or less [and the first day of storage for such vehicle a fee exceeding eighty dollars] a fee exceeding one hundred and twenty-five dollars or more than twenty-five dollars per day for the first three days of storage and twenty-seven dollars for the fourth day, and each day thereafter, of storage for such vehicle. A towing company participating in the directed accident response program shall not charge for the towing of an accident vehicle registered at a weight of more than ten thousand pounds [and the first day of storage for such vehicle a fee exceeding one hundred and twenty-five dollars] a fee exceeding one hundred and forty dollars or more than twenty-five dollars per day for the first three days of storage and twenty-seven dollars for the fourth day, and each day thereafter, of storage for such vehicle. [Such fees shall be inclusive of all charges for the removing and towing of such vehicles to such storage facility and for the first day of storage.]

§9.
Paragraph 1 of subdivision c of section 20-519 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as amended by local law number 72 for the year 2001, is amended to read as follows:

1.  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the towing company shall be entitled to charge the owner or other person claiming a vehicle that is suspected of having been stolen or abandoned or a vehicle with certain alarm devices subject to removal pursuant to section 24-221 of the code which was directed to be towed by the police department pursuant to this section and which is claimed before the end of the thirtieth day after such vehicle is removed by such towing company amounts not in excess of the following: [seventy] one hundred twenty-five dollars for the towing of a vehicle registered at a weight of ten thousand pounds or less; one hundred and [twenty-five] forty dollars for the towing of a vehicle registered at a weight of more than ten thousand pounds; [fifteen] twenty-five dollars per day for the first three days and [seventeen] twenty-seven dollars for the fourth day of storage and each day thereafter. Upon the transfer of an unclaimed vehicle into the custody of the police department property clerk, the towing company shall be entitled to charge the police department amounts not in excess of the following: sixty dollars plus tolls for the towing of a vehicle suspected of having been stolen or abandoned, a vehicle that was blocking a private driveway and was removed pursuant to section 19-169 of the code or a vehicle with certain alarm devices that was removed pursuant to section 24-221 of the code, to a storage facility and subsequent transfer of such vehicle into the custody of such property clerk during the period of time specified in paragraph one of subdivision b of this section; five dollars per day for the first three days of storage of such vehicle and eight dollars for the fourth day of storage and each day thereafter, provided that in no event shall any towing company be entitled to charge the police department for storage charges incurred after the tenth day of storage. The towing company shall be entitled to charge the police department an amount not in excess of sixty dollars plus tolls for the towing of an evidence vehicle to a location designated by a police officer.

§10.
Subdivision c of section 20-520.1 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as added by local law 30 for the year 1997, is amended to read as follows:

c. Any person participating in a city towing program who shall: (i) fail to accept at least two major credit cards; or (ii) refuse to accept a credit card which such person has informed the administering agency is accepted pursuant to subdivision b of this section, shall, after notice and opportunity to be heard, be liable for a penalty not to exceed [one] two thousand five hundred dollars [($1,000)] ($2,500). Any such person who has been found guilty of three such violations within the preceding twenty-four month period shall be removed from participation in such program for a period of time to be determined by the commissioner or administering agency but not to exceed one year; provided, however that the provisions of this section shall not apply to any contract entered into between a towing business and a city agency prior to the date of adoption by the city council of the local law which added this section.

§11.
Section 20-522 of the administrative code of the city of New York, as amended by local law number 112 for the year 1993, is amended to read as follows: 

§20-522.  Penalties. The penalties imposed by this section shall be in addition to any other sanctions and orders which may be imposed by the commissioner pursuant to this chapter including but not limited to such sanctions and orders which may be imposed pursuant to section 20–105 of this code. Notwithstanding the provisions of subdivisions a and b of section 20–106 of this code, the following penalties shall apply for violations of this subchapter: 

a.  1.  Any person who violates the provisions of sections 20–496, 20–509, 20–515 [or], paragraph two of subdivision b of section 20–518 or section 20-527 of this subchapter or any rules promulgated thereunder shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not less than [two hundred fifty] five hundred dollars or more than [two] three thousand dollars, or by imprisonment for not more than ninety days, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

2.  Any person who violates the provisions of sections 20–496, 20–509, 20–515 [or], paragraph two of subdivision b of section 20–518 or section 20-527 of this subchapter or any rules promulgated thereunder who has been found guilty of a violation of any of such sections or such rules two times within the preceding twenty-four month period shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not less than [five hundred] one thousand dollars or more than [five] ten thousand dollars, or by imprisonment for not more than six months, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

3.  A person who violates any provision of this subchapter or any of the rules promulgated thereunder and is not subject to the penalties imposed pursuant to paragraphs one or two of this subdivision shall be guilty of an offense punishable by a fine of not less than [one] two hundred fifty dollars or more than [one] two thousand five hundred dollars, or by imprisonment for not more than ninety days, or by both such fine and imprisonment.  For every subsequent violation of the same provision of this subchapter by the same licensee within a twenty-four month period, the fine shall increase between one hundred and five hundred dollars per violation.  

4.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in paragraphs one or two of this subdivision, there shall be no criminal penalties pursuant to this subdivision for a violation of the provisions of sections 20–518 and 20–519 of this subchapter or any rules promulgated thereunder.
b. 1. In addition to the penalties prescribed by paragraph one of subdivision a of this section, any person who violates the provisions of sections 20-496, 20-509, 20-515 [or], paragraph two of subdivision b of section 20-518 or section 20-527 of this subchapter or any rules promulgated thereunder shall be liable for a civil penalty of not less than [two hundred fifty] five hundred dollars or more than [two] three thousand dollars.
2. In addition to the penalties prescribed by paragraph two of subdivision a of this section, any person who violates the provisions of sections 20-496, 20-509, 20-515 [or], paragraph two of subdivision b of section 20-518 or section 20-527 of this subchapter or any rules promulgated thereunder who has been found guilty of a violation of any such sections or such rules two times within the preceding twenty-four month period shall be liable for a civil penalty of not less than [five hundred] one thousand dollars nor more than [five] ten thousand dollars. 

3. In addition to the penalties prescribed by paragraph three of subdivision a of this section, any person who violates any provision of this subchapter or any rules promulgated thereunder, other than sections 20-496, 20-509, 20-515 [and], paragraph two of subdivision b of section 20-518 or section 20-257 of this subchapter and any rules promulgated thereunder, shall be liable for a civil penalty of not less than [one] two hundred fifty dollars or more than [one] two thousand five hundred dollars.  For every subsequent violation of the same provision of this subchapter by the same licensee within a twenty-four month period, the fine shall increase between one hundred and five hundred dollars per violation. 

§12.
Subchapter 31 of chapter 2 of title 20 of the administrative code of the city of New York is amended by adding a new section 20-529 to read as follows:

§ 20-529. Reporting on industry compliance.  Beginning on November 15, 2011 and annually on that date thereafter, the New York city department of consumer affairs shall submit a report to the council concerning violations issued to tow truck licensees.  Such annual report shall contain data from the preceding twelve months that includes but is not limited to: (a) the total number of violations issued, disaggregated by section of the administrative code violated; (b) the total number of violations issued to each licensee; (c) the number of license suspensions, disaggregated by licensee; (d) the number of license revocations, disaggregated by licensee; and (e) the total number of meetings of the tow advisory board. 
§13.
This local law shall take effect one hundred twenty days after it shall have been enacted into law, except that § 7 of this local law shall take effect one hundred and eighty days after it shall have been enacted into law; provided that the commissioners of the departments of consumer affairs and transportation may take any actions necessary prior to such effective date for the implementation of this local law including, but not limited to, promulgating rules. 
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� NYC Admin Code §§20-495 et seq.


� 49 U.S.C. §14501(c)(2)(c) (2008).


� NYC Admin Code §19-169.1(a).


� NYC Admin Code §20-509.1.


� NYC Admin Code §20-518.


� NYC Admin Code §20-519.


� NYC Admin Code §19-169.1(a)


� NYC Admin Code §20-509.1


� NYC Admin Code §20-518(a) 


� NYC Admin Code §20-519(a)


� Local Law 72/2001, codified at NYC Admin Code §20-518(b)(4)


� Local Law 72/2001, codified at NYC Admin Code §20-519(c)(1)


� Local Law 14/2004, codified at NYC Admin Code §20-509.1 


� Supra note 3.


� Supra note 4.


� NYC Admin Code §20-518(b)(4)


� NYC Admin Code §20-519(c)(1) 


� Id.


� Proposed Intro. 201-A would remove the extra mileage charge of four dollars per/mile that currently exists for these other non-consensual tows.  


� Other prohibited Acts include use of police detection equipment without an NYPD issued permit, soliciting or offering to tow at the scene of an accident without proper authorization, offering repair services and providing estimates for such services at the scene of an accident, and offering a payment, fee or reward in exchange for information on a vehicle that needs towing services.


� Id.


� Supra note 19.
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